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June 15, 2012 

Yukon Government 
Suite 2C‐4114‐4th Ave 
PO Box 2703 (K‐149) 
Whitehorse, YT 
Y1A 2C6 
 
Ms. Karen Furlong, EIT 
Project Manager 
 
Dear Ms. Furlong: 
 
Faro Mine Remediation Project 
Drawdown Rate of Intermediate Pond 
  
This letter presents our review and recommendations regarding the potential increase of the 
drawdown rate of the Intermediate Pond at Faro. 

1 RELEVANT DOCUMENTS 

We understand that the maximum drawdown rate of the Intermediate Pond has been limited to 
25 mm/day historically. We have reviewed the following two memoranda on the subject: 

 BGC 2008. Intermediate Dam Trigger Levels, May 15; and, 

 BGC 2009. Support for 2009 Freshet, Sept. 25. 

 
The former summarized stability analyses carried out to establish piezometric incident levels for the 
downstream slope stability under steady seepage condition as well as for the upstream slope stability 
under rapid drawdown condition. Table 1, extracted from the memorandum, outlines the rapid 
drawdown incident levels, provided that the piezometric levels for piezometers located beneath the 
dam crest and downstream toe are kept within the following ranges: 

 Beneath dam crest:   P96‐1: El. 1027.8 to 1031.7 m; and 
P96‐2: El. 1029.4 to 1031.9 m. 

 Beneath d/s dam toe:  Within historical operating range. 

 
The latter reviewed allowable drawdown rates for the Cross Valley and Intermediate Dams. Table 1 
was again given in this memorandum as rapid drawdown incident levels. It further reviewed the 
guidance given by Mr. Gerry Ferris on April 3, 2009, where the maximum rate of drawdown was kept 
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as 25 mm/day. A revised recommendation appears to have removed the maximum rate of 
drawdown, as long as limits on total drawdown from the initial pond elevation shown in Table 1 are 
respected. 

Table 1  Rapid Drawdown Incident Levels 

Incident Level 
Pond elevation range for different incident levels (m, amsl) 

(drawdown from initial elevation, m) 

Starting tailings pond elevation (m, amsl)  1047.7  1046.5 

Normal 
1047.7 to 1047.4 

(0 to 0.3) 
1046.5 to 1046 

(0 to 0.5) 

Alert 
1047.4 to 1046.8 

(0.3 to 0.9) 
1046 to 1044.3 
(0.5 to 2.2) 

Emergency 
1046.8 to 1045.8 

(0.9 to 1.9) 
1044.3 to 1043.52 

(2.2 to 3) 

Failure1 
1045.8 TO 1044.9 

(1,9 to 2.8) 
 

1.  Below this elevation, the Factor of Safety is less than unity. 
2.  Entire pond is drained at elevation 1043.5 m. 

2 DISCUSSION 
We understand that Faro controls the level of Intermediate Pond by pumping water from the pond to 
Faro water treatment plant. Treated water is then discharged to the Polishing Pond from where 
water is released through the siphon outlet to the downstream channel. The annual operation of the 
Faro treatment plant is governed by the allowable drawdown rate of the Intermediate Pond. At the 
end of water treatment season, the pond level is drawn down to the lowest level to maximize the 
pond storage for the following year. 

The current target drawdown level of the Intermediate Pond is El. 1043.0 m. Therefore, it seems to 
be advantageous to attempt to operate the pond level in the range of El. 1043 m to El. 1046.5 m, as 
far as practical. According to Table 1, if drawdown starts from pond level at El. 1046.5 m, the incident 
level could be kept within the range of “normal” to “emergency” without encroaching on the 
“failure” level. 

3 RECOMMENDATIONS 

We understand that Yukon government would like to increase the drawdown rate of the 
Intermediate Pond to facilitate yearly operation of care and maintenance activities. Upon the review 
of above two BGC memoranda, we summarize our recommendations as follows: 

 There are many factors that affect dam stability. While we appreciate the wish of the Yukon 
Government to increase the drawdown rate, we feel that we should proceed cautiously with 
the increase on an incremental basis. We should not stress the dam more severely than 
necessary to avoid precipitating a dam incident. 






